
Please ask for  Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - STANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 4th January, 2011 at 2.15 pm 

Venue - Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth 
House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
 

 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 
working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, 

this will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 

Committee Members 
  
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent) 
Mrs. J. Jenkins (Independent)(Chairman) 
Mrs. M. Oechsle JP (Parish) 
Mrs. S.M. Matthews (Breckland) 

Mr. B. Rayner (Parish) 
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent) 
Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland) 
Mr. M. Whittley (Parish) 
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland) 
 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Monday, 20 December 2010  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Standards Committee 
4 January 2011 

 

 

PART APART APART APART A    

ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC    

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 4 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2010. 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 
To receive apologies for absence. 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest. 
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting. 

 

6. ABOLITION OF THE STANDARDS REGIME  5 - 8 

 
An announcement from DCLG and comment from the Local Government 
Chronicle are attached in connection with the provisions of the Localism Bill.  
The Committee’s views on the proposals so far, on the Committee 
membership up to statutory abolition in late 2011 or early 2012 and on 
training are requested. 
 

 

7. CITIZEN'S PANEL  9 - 40 

 
The Committee concluded at the its meeting on 8th December, 2009 at 
Minute 54/09 that a survey through the Citizens’ Panel would be a useful tool 
for promoting public awareness on standards and it was accordingly resolved 
to participate in the next Citizens’ Panel survey. 
 
Attached are the results of the survey for information and discussion.  
 

 

8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (STANDING ITEM)   

 
To note items for inclusion on future agendas. 

 

9. NEXT MEETING   

 
To note the date of the next meeting on 15 February 2011. 

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 19 October 2010 at 2.15 pm in 
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr M.D. Eveling JP 
Mrs J. Jenkins (Chairman) 
Mrs S.M. Matthews 
Mrs M. Oechsle JP 
 

Mr B.D Rayner 
Mr F.J. Sharpe 
Mr M. Whittley 
 

 
Also Present  
Mr J.P. Labouchere 
 

  
 

 
In Attendance  
Susan Allen - Standards Officer 
John Chinnery - Solicitor & Standards Consultant 
Phil Daines - Development Services Manager (Capita 

Symonds for Breckland Council) 
Helen McAleer - Senior Committee Officer 
Jane Osborne - Committee Officer 

 
 
 Action By 

68/10 MINUTES  
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2010 were confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 

   

69/10 APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence had been received from Mr George Ridgway.   

   

70/10 URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 There was none.   

   

71/10 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 

 None.   

   

72/10 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING  
 

 Mr John Labouchere was in attendance, particularly for Agenda Items 6 
and 8.  

 

   

73/10 THE FUTURE OF THE STANDARDS REGIME  
 

 The Solicitor gave Members a brief update on the Government’s 
proposals. 
 
The whole Standards regime would be affected, with the abolition of 
Standards for England and changes to the powers of Standards 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



Standards Committee 
19 October 2010 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

Committees and to the Code of Conduct.   
 
A new criminal offence of ‘serious misconduct’ would be introduced and 
Councillors would be required to register their personal interests, in a 
more prescriptive way than at present, including things likely to affect 
their actions.  There would also be an extension to the Ombudsman’s 
powers making their decisions legally enforceable. 
 
According to the guidance issued so far, it would be up to the electorate 
to deal with Councillors who acted in an ineffective or irresponsible way.  
However, this implied that a lot of behaviour would be unregulated.  
More would be known once the Localism Bill was published, in 
November/December 2011. 
 
Members discussed the possible changes and their implications and 
could not see how some of the proposals would work. 
 
Mr Labouchere made a few points ‘from the other side of the fence’.  He 
felt the current system was weighted against the Councillor because: 
 

§ The principle of pre-examination did not give the ‘accused’ any 
opportunity to put their case; 

§ The subject was not allowed to know the details of the 
complaint; 

§ Cases could take many months to reach conclusion, during 
which time the Councillor was operating ‘under a cloud’. 

 
He said that there must be a better way of ensuring that there was a 
case to answer before costs were incurred. 
 
The Chairman said that the Government was obviously in agreement 
with Mr Labouchere as they were abolishing the present system.   
 
She asked Members for their views on the Committee’s proposals to 
arrange further training and to discuss the terms of office of Standards 
Members. 
 
It was agreed by all that it would not be worth progressing either item 
until more information was available. 
 
The report was noted.  

   

74/10 CONSULTATION: NEW CODE OF PUBLICITY  
 

 The Chairman asked Members if they had any concerns, from a 
Standards point of view, about the new draft Code of Publicity. 
 
A Member asked if the third parties, referred to in paragraph 25, were 
bound by the Code of Conduct.  The Solicitor could not confirm that as 
he was not sure exactly what the paragraph referred to.  
 
Another Member said that he would have preferred to have been 
consulted on the abolition of the Code of Conduct.  He could 
understand why the Standards regime was being abolished but not the 
Code. 
 

 

2



Standards Committee 
19 October 2010 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

The Chairman asked for an item on a future agenda to discuss the 
whole process of the abolition of the standards structure and the way in 
which Breckland Council would manage public perception of the 
change.  She suggested that other Standards Committees could be 
contacted to ask what they were doing.   
 
The report was noted.  

   

75/10 PREDETERMINATION BY PLANNING OFFICERS  
 

 The Development Services Manager was in attendance for this item. 
 
The Chairman invited the Member who had raised this matter to explain 
her concerns. 
 
Mrs Oechsle said that as a Parish Councillor she found the planning 
part of the website a very good resource.  However, certain comments 
made by planning officers during pre-application negotiations, were 
being published amongst the supporting information submitted with 
planning applications.  She felt that members of the public, seeing those 
comments, would consider that it was pointless for them to make 
representation as it appeared that the officer had already made his/her 
determination.  She read out some examples. 
 
She was concerned that there was no disclaimer from the Council and 
she asked how it could defend itself, particularly in relation to Delegated 
Decisions.  From a public perception point of view, she thought it was 
relevant to discuss this matter. 
 
The Development Services Manager said that it was a knotty problem.  
It had always been considered helpful to have pre-application 
discussions and he thought they should continue, but he was happy to 
discuss ways of protecting the Council and Officers. 
 
Pre-application discussions fell into three main areas: 
 

1. helping people with no knowledge of the system; 
2. giving specialist advice; and 
3. directing applicants to the appropriate agencies dealing with 

complex issues (eg drainage) 
 
The advice given was always informal and usually confidential.  If the 
issue was likely to be controversial the applicant was encouraged to 
speak to the Town or Parish Council and local people in advance of 
submitting an application. 
 
Part of the problem was that Officers were under pressure to determine 
applications within a specified timeframe.  Therefore no negotiations 
could take place once the application was submitted. 
 
He acknowledged that it could sometimes appear, from comments 
made, that an Officer supported an application.  However, that 
application still had to go through the formal process.  The planning 
team now worked for Capita Symonds and had no power to approve 
applications.  They made recommendations to Council Officers who 
actually made the decisions. 

 

3



Standards Committee 
19 October 2010 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
Speaking from his professional viewpoint, Mr Whittley said that pre-
application discussions were vital and saved time. 
 
Mrs Oechsle agreed that they were important but said that it meant that 
once an application was validated the Parish Council and public could 
be unaware of months of discussions that might have taken place.  
Because of the documents published on the website, the public might 
jump to the conclusion that the application was already pre-determined.  
She felt that the process lacked checks and balance, particularly in 
relation to Delegated Decisions (those that did not get determined by 
the Development Control Committee). 
 
Ward Members were advised not to have pre-application discussions, 
which could made it difficult for them to represent their community, but 
the applicant, agent and developer could.  
 
The Solicitor asked if it would help if it were specifically mentioned on 
the website that pre-application discussions would be considered by 
Senior Officers but would not influence the decision. 
 
Mrs Oechsle felt that it was important to include a disclaimer on every 
application so that the public would understand.  She said that planning 
officers should be aware of public perception. 
 
Mr Labouchere hoped that information would continue to be put on the 
website with a disclaimer. 
 
The Development Services Manager was thanked for his explanations.  
He was pleased that the Member found the website useful and said that 
he was happy to work with the legal department to provide a disclaimer. 

   

76/10 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (STANDING ITEM)  
 

 One item had been suggested: 
 

§ Managing public perception of the abolition of the Standards 
regime.  

 

   

77/10 NEXT MEETING  
 

 The arrangements for the next meeting were noted.   

   

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.20 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

4



Agenda Item 6

5



6



7



8



p Cover Page 

Cover Page 

  

Research 
Report 

 
Wave 21  Breckland data 

Prepared for: 
Partnership 

 

Research 
Report 

 
Wave 21  Breckland data 

Prepared for: 
Partnership 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

9



 Wave 21  Breckland data 

Prepared for:   

Prepared by:  BMG Research 

December 2010 

 

 

 

Produced by BMG Research 

© Bostock Marketing Group Ltd, 2010 

www.bmgresearch.co.uk 

 

Project: 7826 

 

Registered in England No. 2841970 

Registered office:  

7 Holt Court North 

Heneage Street West 

Aston Science Park 

Birmingham  

B7 4AX 

UK 

Tel: +44 (0) 121 3336006 

10



11



 Wave 21  Breckland data 

 

Table of Contents 

1 Executive summary .................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Standards Committee.................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Code of Conduct ........................................................................................... 1 

1.3 Interest in Standards Committee and Code of Conduct ................................ 1 

1.4 Importance of the Standards Committee ....................................................... 2 

1.5 Views on Breckland Council .......................................................................... 2 

1.6 Satisfaction with the way the Council runs things .......................................... 2 

2 Introduction ................................................................................................ 3 

2.1 Background ................................................................................................... 3 

2.2 Methodology .................................................................................................. 3 

2.2.1 Fieldwork dates ...................................................................................... 4 

2.3 Response rates ............................................................................................. 4 

2.4 Reporting of data ........................................................................................... 4 

3 Standards Committee ................................................................................ 6 

3.1 Awareness and understanding of Standards Committee .............................. 6 

3.2 Code of Conduct ........................................................................................... 8 

3.3 Interest in Standards Committee and Code of Conduct .............................. 10 

3.4 Perceived importance of Standards Committee .......................................... 12 

4 Breckland Council .................................................................................... 13 

4.1 Views on Breckland Council ........................................................................ 13 

4.2 Satisfaction with the way the Council runs things ........................................ 15 

Appendix 1 : Profile of respondents ................................................................. 17 

Appendix 2: Questionnaire .............................................................................. 18 

Appendix 3 : ACORN and Norfolk Constabulary Local Delivery Units (LDUs) 

classifications................................................................................................... 22 

 

 

 

 

12



Executive summary 

 
1

 

1 Executive summary 

1.1 Standards Committee 

All elected district, town and parish councillors within the Breckland district are 

required to sign up to a Code of Conduct 

Standards Committee is responsible for ensuring that elected councillors abide by 

this Code. 

More than a quarter of respondents (28%) have heard of the Standards Committee 

and this increases to a third of older respondents and the retired. 

The majority of these respondents (71%) feel they understand the type of work the 

Standards Committee undertakes. 

Nearly three-quarters of those aware of the Standards Committee (72%) are aware 

that it is independent and objective. 

Respondents in rural areas of the district are significantly more likely than those in 

urban areas to be aware and knowledgeable of the Standards Committee. 

1.2 Code of Conduct 

Two thirds (67%) of respondents are aware that there is a Code of Conduct for 

councillors.   

Six in ten (61%) are also aware that all elected councillors are governed by this Code 

of Conduct. 

More than a half (56%) of respondents are also aware that if an elected councillor 

has behaved inappropriately that he or she can be reported to the Standards 

Committee.  Almost four in ten (38%) respondents aware of this, say they would 

know how to report an elected councillor to the Standards Committee.   

1.3 Interest in Standards Committee and Code of Conduct 

Two in five respondents (41%) would be interested to find out more about the 

 

However, just 19% say they would know how to find out more. 

A similar proportion (21%) says they would know how to find out more about the 

Code of Conduct.  

The Breckland Voice is the most frequently cited preferred source of information 

about either the Standards Committee (59% of all respondents).  The Breckland 

Council website is preferred by a third of respondents (36%) and is more likely to be 

mentioned by the under 45s than those older. 

A similar proportion (35%) consider local newspapers to be their preferred source of 

information about the Standards Committee or the Coe of Conduct. 

13



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
2 

1.4 Importance of the Standards Committee 

The majority of respondents (79%) consider the work of the Standards Committee to 

be important.  Just 5% do not consider it important. 

1.5 Views on Breckland Council 

Of a number of statements about the Council and the extent to which they agree that 

it provides good value of money, keeps them well informed about how money is 

spent, handles its money effectively and provides a good standard of service, they 

are most likely to agree that the Council provides a good standard of service (64% of 

those providing a valid response) and least likely to agree that it handles its money 

effectively (40%). 

Three-fifths of respondents (60%) agree that the Council provides good value for 

money.  This is higher than the figure reported in the 2008 Place Survey of 42.9%.  

Just over half of respondents (54%) agree that the Council keeps them well informed 

about how money is spent. 

Older respondents are more likely than average to agree with these statements, as 

are respondents living in rural areas and those in the ACORN  category; Wealthy 

Achievers. 

1.6 Satisfaction with the way the Council runs things 

Two-thirds of respondents (68%) are satisfied with the way Breckland Council runs 

things.  This is higher than the figure reported in the 2008 Place Survey (50%). 

One in eight respondents (12%) are dissatisfied, including just 4% that are very 

dissatisfied. 

Once again, older respondents, those living in rural areas and those in the ACORN 

category; Wealthy Achievers, are more likely than average to be satisfied. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



Introduction 

 
3

 

2 Introduction 

2.1 Background 

panel pilot of 1,000 people

and Norfolk County Council.  Since then, 21 waves of research have taken place.  

This report presents the data for the latest wave. 

Prior to Wave 19, a major refreshment survey was undertaken, mailing 25,000 

recruitment questionnaires to a selection of respondents determined by a) previous 

response rates to surveys and b) gaps in the current panel.  Targets included those 

in specific districts and those in lower IMD areas (Index of Multiple Deprivation).  

1,566 agreed to join the panel and sent a completed questionnaire back.  These 

were added to the Panel and other panel members (particularly those who had 

responded little to previous surveys) were taken off to ensure a final panel size of 

approximately 7,000, with 1,000 in each district. 

2.2 Methodology 

The Wave 21 questionnaire was sent to 7,000 panel members; 6,256 sent out by 

post and 744 invited to complete an online survey via email.   

Each partner used a slightly different version of the questionnaire, with 13 pages of 

core questions and 3 pages of district questions, except panel members in Great 

Yarmouth (who had a 13 page questionnaire, 7 pages of core questions, excluding 

NHS Norfolk questions, and 3 pages of district questions) and in North Norfolk (who 

had a 13 page questionnaire with just core questions).  All postal questionnaires 

were printed as a 16 page booklet, printed black and white on a white background.  

The postal questionnaire was set up for scanning rather than manually inputting the 

data.  

The table below shows the mailing/emailing sizes for Breckland. 

Figure 1 : Mailing Sizes  

 Postal Online Total 

Breckland 896 104 1000 

All Norfolk 6256 744 7000 

 

  

15



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
4 

2.2.1 Fieldwork dates 

In terms of the postal survey, the first mailing took place w/c 6th September 2010.  

The cut off date was set as Friday 24th September.  The second mailing took place 

w/c 4th October, with a cut off date of Monday 18th October.  All postal mailings 

included a copy of the questionnaire and a covering letter with return envelope. 

For the online survey, panel members indicating a preference for online completion 

were sent an email w/c 13th September, inviting them to log in online and complete a 

questionnaire.  They were given an initial cut off date of Friday 1st October, and then 

a reminder email was sent out the following week, with a cut off date of Monday 18th 

October. 

2.3 Response rates 

Following close of fieldwork, 4,600 completed questionnaires had either been 

returned by post or completed online (4,207 and 393 respectively), representing an 

overall response rate of 66%.  The table below shows the response rates by district 

and method of completion. 

Figure 2 : Response  

 Postal Online Total 

Breckland 64% 57% 63% 

All Norfolk 67% 53% 66% 

The data was weighted by age and district on an interlocking basis to ensure that it 

was representative across Norfolk.  This is the same process to that undertaken for 

earlier Panel surveys. 

2.4 Reporting of data 

This report contains a written summary of the Breckland questions, including both 

postal and online responses. 

Graphs and tables are used throughout the report to assist explanation and analysis.  

Althoug

more than +/-1%.  These occur where, for example, rating scales have been added 

to calculate proportions of respondents who are satisfied at all (i.e. either very or 

fairly satisfied).    

 

In addition to this written report, separate data reports have been produced, which 

show the total results for each question and also the results cross-tabulated by the 

following respondent sub groups (main): 

 Gender; 

16



Introduction 

 
5

 

 Age; 

 Disability; 

 Employment status; 

 Tenure; 

 Children in household; 

 Carer status; 

 Ethnicity; 

 Rural/urban split; 

 Survey method (web or postal); 

 ACORN category. 

A separate data report (geography) was produced with the following sub groups: 

 ACORN group; 

 ACORN category; 

 MOSAIC group; 

 Safer Neighbourhood Team areas (SNTs);  

 Norfolk Constabulary Local Delivery Units (LDUs). 

A brief explanation of ACORN codes, LDU boundaries and SNT areas are provided 

in Appendix 3. 

Data has been analysed by the above sub groups where appropriate to the question 

and also where sub groups show a statistically significant difference in response. 

The profile of respondents can be found in Appendix 1 

A copy of the questionnaire can be found in Appendix 2.   

17



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
6 

3 Standards Committee 

All elected district, town and parish councillors within the Breckland district are 

required to sign up to a Code of Conduct and to abide by i

Standards Committee is responsible for ensuring that elected councillors abide by 

this Code.  This Committee is made up of 9 members, including 3 who are 

independent members i.e. non-elected members not connected to local government.  

The others are town, parish and district council elected councillors.  The 

independent, non-elected members ensure that the Standards Committee acts fairly 

and impartially. 

The extent to which respondents are aware of the Standards Committee and their 

understanding of it is now examined. 

3.1 Awareness and understanding of Standards Committee 

When asked if they have heard of the Standards Committee, more than a quarter of 

respondents (28%) have.   

This proportion is higher than average amongst 45+ year olds (32%) and the retired 

(35%).  Respondents living in rural areas within Breckland are significantly more 

likely than those living in urban areas to be aware of the Standards Committee (31%, 

compared with 23%). 

Those aware of the Standards Committee were then asked if they felt that they 

understood the type of work the Standards Committee undertakes before they took 

part in the survey. 

The majority (71%) said they did understand the type of work the Committee 

undertakes.   

It increases to 78% of those whose ACORN category is that of Wealthy Achievers. 

Respondents with a disability are significantly less likely than those without to 

understand the type of work the Committee undertakes (52%, compared with 72%). 

Nearly three-quarters of those aware of the Standards Committee (72%) are aware 

that the Committee is independent and objective.   

Respondents in rural areas are significantly more likely than those in urban areas to 

be aware that the Standards Committee is independent and objective (78%, 

compared with 57%). 

  

18



Standards Committee 

 
7

 

Table 1 : Awareness and understanding of the Standards Committee by key 
demographic factors, percentages   

 
Unweighted 

sample 
bases 

% aware of 
Standards 
Committee 

Unweighted 
sample 
bases 
(where 

aware of 
Committee) 

% who 
understand 
the type of 

work 
undertaken 

% aware it is 
independent 
and objective 

All 
respondents 

633 28% 187 71% 72% 

Gender      

Male 316 30% 96 74% 67% 

Female 305 28% 89 68% 77% 

Age      

16-24 9 33% 3 67% 67% 

25-44 130 21% 37 59% 74% 

45-64 289 31% 91 78% 73% 

65+ 192 33% 63 76% 75% 

Whether have children 

Children in 
household 

148 24% 37 72% 77% 

No children in 
household 

455 31% 142 71% 70% 

Carer 42 28% 12 69% 77% 

Not a carer 482 27% 137 71% 70% 

Area type      

Rural 412 31% 135 72% 78% 

Urban 210 23% 50 68% 57% 

 

  

19



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
8 

3.2 Code of Conduct 

Where respondents were asked if they are aware that there is a Code of Conduct for 

councillors, two thirds (67%) are aware of this.   

The proportion is higher than average among those whose Acorn classification is that 

of Wealthy Achievers (75%).    

Six in ten respondents (61%) are aware that all elected councillors are governed by 

this Code of Conduct.  

Men are more likely to be aware that this is the case (69% compared with 56% of 

women).  The proportion is significantly higher amongst respondents that do not 

have children in the household than amongst those that do (69% compared with 

48%). 

More than a half (56%) are aware that if an elected councillor has behaved 

inappropriately that he or she can be reported to the Standards Committee. 

Almost four in ten respondents (38%) that are aware that they can report an elected 

councillor to the Standards Committee, say they know how to do this.  This 

proportion increases to % of retired 

respondents. 

These findings are summarised in the table below. 

  

20



Standards Committee 

 
9

 

behaviour, by key demographic factors, percentages  (all respondents 
providing a valid response) 

 
Unweighted 

sample 
bases 

% aware 
of Code 

of 
Conduct 

% aware 
that 

councillors 
are 

governed 
by  Code 

of Conduct 

% aware 
that can 
report 

councillors 
to 

Standards 
Committee 

Unweighted 
sample 
bases 
(where 

aware can 
report 

councillors) 

% who 
would 

know how 
to report a 
councillor 

to 
Committee 

All 
respondents 

351 67% 61% 56% 169 38% 

Gender       

Male 177 72% 69% 59% 79 39% 

Female 168 66% 56% 55% 89 37% 

Age       

16-24 5 100% 60% 100% 31 0% 

25-44 59 59% 58% 43% 37 32% 

45-64 166 69% 66% 57% 58 50% 

65+ 115 65% 63% 54% 42 55% 

Whether have children 

Yes 79 65% 48% 49% 42 21% 

No 258 71% 69% 61% 122 43% 

Carer       

Yes 25 56% 52% 41% 8 88% 

No 262 69% 62% 58% 133 32% 

Area type       

Rural 230 71% 62% 59% 115 43% 

Urban 116 64% 62% 53% 52 25% 

 

  

21



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
10 

3.3 Interest in Standards Committee and Code of Conduct 

Two in five respondents (41%) would be interested to find out more about the 

 

The level of interest is higher than average amongst 65+ year olds (49%) and 

households without children (46%). 

However, just 19% of all respondents say they would know how to find out more 

about the Standards Committee.  This is equivalent to less than half of those that are 

interested in finding out more (although it may include different respondents as both 

questions were asked of all). 

There is little variation in this proportion by various demographic and geographic 

factors. 

A similar proportion of respondents (21%) say they would know how to find out more 

about the Code of Conduct.  Again, there is little various in this proportion across 

demographic and geographic factors. 

When asked how they would prefer to find out more about the Standards Committee 

or the Code of Conduct, more than half the respondents (59%) say they would prefer 

to do so through the Breckland Voice, with a third citing the Breckland Council 

website (36%) and/or local newspapers (35%). 

Just one in eight (13%) are not interested in finding out more information.  This 

increases to one in five respondents with children in the household (20%). 

22



Standards Committee 

 
1

1

 

Figure 1: Preferred sources of information on the Standards Committee or 
Code of Conduct (all respondents in Breckland), prompted, multiple response 

Unweighted sample base = 633 

  

59%

36%

35%

25%

14%

11%

2%

13%

2%

Breckland Voice

Breckland Council website

Local newspapers

Leaflets in public places

Council offices

Village notice boards

Other

Not interested in finding out more

Not provided

23



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
12 

The level of interest in using the website for information declines as age increases; 

from 89% of 16-24 year olds, to 40% of 25-44 year olds to 30% of 45-64 year olds to 

13% of 65+ year olds.  Age is the key determining factor here and this is reflected in 

the fact that those in work are significantly more likely to select the website as a 

source of information than the retired (44%, compared with 17%). 

3.4 Perceived importance of Standards Committee 

All respondents, irrespective of awareness, were asked how important they consider 

the work of the Standards Committee to be. 

The majority of respondents (79%) consider the work of the Standards Committee to 

be important.  This includes 33% that consider it to be very important. 

Just 5% of all respondents do not consider it important, with the remainder neutral 

(15%, just 1% did not provide a response). 

This proportion differs little between demographic groups and between rural and 

urban areas. 

Figure 2: Perceived importance of the work of the Standards Committee (all 
respondents in Breckland) 

Unweighted sample base = 633 

 

Very important
33%

Fairly important
45%

Neither important 
nor unimportant

15%
Fairly unimportant

3%Very unimportant
3%

Not provided
1%

24



Breckland Council 

 
1

3

 

4 Breckland Council 

Respondents in Breckland were asked a series of questions about their local 

Council. 

4.1 Views on Breckland Council 

Firstly, they were asked the extent to which they agree or disagree that Breckland 

Council: 

 

 

ces effectively; 

 

Their views are summarised in the figure below. 

Figure 3: Extent to which respondents agree or disagree with statements about 
Breckland Council (all respondents in Breckland  valid responses only) 

Unweighted sample bases vary 

Respondents are most likely to agree that the Council provides a good standard of 

service (64%). 

They are least likely to agree that the Council handles its finances effectively (40%). 

Three-fifths of respondents consider that Breckland Council provides good value for 

money (60%) and this represents a significant improvement compared with 2008 

Place Survey in the district (43%). 

4%

7%

7%

5%

9%

13%

12%

9%

27%

26%

41%

22%

48%

42%

31%

51%

12%

12%

9%

13%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

The Council provides good value for money

The Council keeps me well informed about how 

money is spent

The Council handles its finances effectively

The Council provides a good standard of service

Strongly disagree Tend to disagree Neither agree nor disagree

Tend to agree Strongly agree

25



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
14 

Around one in five disagree that the Council keeps them well informed about how 

money is spent (20%) and that it handles its finances effectively (19%). 

Taking each statement individually, respondents most likely to agree that the 

Council provides good value for money include (compared with a sample average 

of 60%): 

 65+ year olds (64%); 

 Respondents without children in the household (64%, compared with 48% of 

those with children);  

 Respondents in rural parts of the district (65%, compared with 48% of those in 

urban areas); 

 ACORN categories; Wealthy Achievers (65%) and the Comfortably Off (60%), 

compared with lower proportions of those of Moderate Means (41%) and the 

Hard Pressed (42%). 

In terms of who is most likely to agree that the Council keeps them well informed 

about how money is spent, these include (compared with a sample average of 

54%): 

 65+ year olds (64%) and the retired (64%); 

 Carers (71%); 

 Respondents in rural areas (62%, compared with 41% of those in urban areas); 

 ACORN category; Wealthy Achievers (61%). 

Those that are most likely to agree that the Council handles its finances 

effectively include (compared with a sample average of 40%); 

 65+ year olds (46%) and the retired (47%); 

 Respondents without children in the household (46%, compared with 30% of 

those with children); 

 ACORN categories; Wealthy Achievers (44%) and the Comfortably Off (46%), 

compared with just 20% of those of Moderate Means and the Hard Pressed. 

Respondents most likely to agree that the Council provides a good standard of 

service include (compared with a sample average of 64%): 

 Respondents in rural parts of the district (70%, compared with 51% of those in 

urban areas); 

 ACORN categories; Wealthy Achievers (67%) and the Comfortably Off (68%), 

compared with 42% of those of Moderate Means and 52% of those Hard 

Pressed. 

26



Breckland Council 

 
1

5

 

4.2 Satisfaction with the way the Council runs things 

Respondents were asked whether, taking everything into account, they are satisfied 

or dissatisfied with the way Breckland Council runs things. 

Two-thirds of those providing a response (68%) are satisfied, including 14% that are 

very satisfied. 

This compares with a 2008 Place Survey figure of 50%. 

One in eight respondents (12%) are dissatisfied, which includes 4% that are very 

dissatisfied.   

Figure 4: Extent to which respondents are satisfied or dissatisfied with the way 
Breckland Council runs things (all respondents in Breckland  valid responses 
only) 

Unweighted sample base = 629 

Respondents particularly likely to be satisfied with the way the Council runs things 

include: 

 65+ year olds (72%) and the retired (71%); 

 Carers (72%); 

 Respondents living in rural parts of the district (74%, compared with 53% of 

those in urban areas); 

 ACORN category: Wealthy Achievers (72%). 

  

14%

54%

21%

8%

4%

Very satisfied

Fairly satisfied

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

Fairly dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

27



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
16 

Those most likely to be dissatisfied include: 

 45-64 year olds (19%); 

 Respondents in urban areas (23%, compared with 6% of those in rural areas); 

 ACORN category:  Moderate Means (27%). 

 

 

28



Appendix 1 : Profile of respondents 

 
1

7

 

Appendix 1 : Profile of respondents 

The table below shows the profile of respondents (weighted bases and proportions) 

in Breckland. 

  Weighted Bases Proportion 

 Total 691 100% 

  
  

Gender Male 324 45% 

 Female 348 55% 

  
  

Age 16-24 70 10% 

 25-44 217 31% 

 45-64 221 32% 

 65+ 162 23% 

  
  

Disability Yes 113 16% 

 No 558 81% 

  
  

Employment status Working 413 60% 

 Looking after home 37 5% 

 Retired 163 24% 

 Other 49 7% 

  
  

Tenure Home owner 538 78% 

 Rent from housing assoc./ Council 42 6% 

 Rent from private landlord 43 6% 

  
  

Children in household Yes 207 30% 

 No 449 65% 

  
  

Carer Yes 38 5% 

 No 547 79% 

  
  

Ethnicity White 643 93% 

 BME 21 3% 

  
  

  

29



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
18 

Appendix 2: Questionnaire 

30



Appendix 2: Questionnaire 

 
1

9

 

 

 

31



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
20 

 

 

32



Appendix 2: Questionnaire 

 
2

1

 

  

33



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
22 

Appendix 3 : ACORN and Norfolk Constabulary Local Delivery Units 

(LDUs) classifications 

ACORN CLASSIFICATION 

Category Group Type 

Wealthy 

Achievers 

Wealthy Executives 

Affluent mature professionals, large houses 

Affluent working families with mortgages 

Villages with wealthy commuters 

Well-off managers, larger houses 

Affluent Greys 

Older affluent professionals 

Farming communities 

Old people, detached houses 

Mature couples, smaller detached houses 

Flourishing Families 

Larger families, prosperous suburbs 

Well-off working families with mortgages 

Well-off managers, detached houses 

Large families & houses in rural areas 

Urban 

Prosperity 

Prosperous Professionals 

Well-off professionals, larger houses and converted 

flats 

Older Professionals in detached houses and 

apartments 

Educated Urbanites 

Affluent urban professionals, flats 

Prosperous young professionals, flats 

Young educated workers, flats 

Multi-ethnic young, converted flats 

Suburban privately renting professionals 

Aspiring Singles 

Student flats and cosmopolitan sharers 

Singles & sharers, multi-ethnic areas 

Low income singles, small rented flats 

Student Terraces 

  

34



Appendix 3 : ACORN and Norfolk Constabulary Local Delivery Units (LDUs) 

classifications 

 
2

3

 

Comfortably 
Off 

Starting Out 
Young couples, flats and terraces 

White collar singles/sharers, terraces 

Secure Families 

Younger white-collar couples with mortgages 

Middle income, home owning areas 

Working families with mortgages 

Mature families in suburban semis 

Established home owning workers 

Home owning Asian family areas 

Settled Suburbia 

Retired home owners 

Middle income, older couples 

Lower income people, semis 

Prudent Pensioners 
Elderly singles, purpose built flats 

Older people, flats 

Moderate 
Means 

Asian Communities 
Crowded Asian terraces 

Low income Asian families 

Post Industrial Families 
Skilled older family terraces 

Young family workers 

Blue Collar Roots 

Skilled workers, semis and terraces 

Home owning, terraces 

Older rented terraces 

Hard Pressed 

Struggling Families 

Low income larger families, semis 

Older people, low income, small semis 

Low income, routine jobs, unemployment 

Low rise terraced estates of poorly-off workers 

Low incomes, high unemployment, single parents  

Large families, many children, poorly educated 

Burdened Singles 

Council flats, single elderly people 

Council terraces, unemployment, many singles  

Council flats, single parents, unemployment 

High Rise Hardship 
Old people in high rise flats 

Singles & single parents, high rise estates 

Inner City Adversity 
Multi-ethnic purpose built estates 

Multi-ethnic, crowded flats 

35



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
24 

NORFOLK CONSTABULARY LOCAL DELIVERY UNITS (LDUs) 

District Local Delivery Unit 
Safer Neighbourhood 

Team area 

King's Lynn & 

West Norfolk  

Hunstanton, Burnham, Dersingham, Gayton, 

and the Woottons 
Hunstanton & Burnham 

Hunstanton, Burnham, Dersingham, Gayton, 

and the Woottons 
Dersingham & Gayton 

Hunstanton, Burnham, Dersingham, Gayton, 

and the Woottons 
The Woottons 

King's Lynn North King's Lynn North 

Gaywood, Fairstead, and Reffley 
Gaywood, Fairstead, and 

Reffley 

Terrington, South and West Lynn Terrington 

Terrington, South and West Lynn South and West Lynn 

Watlington and Downham Market Downham Market 

Watlington and Downham Market Watlington 

Breckland 

East Dereham East Dereham 

Swaffham and Watton Swaffham 

Swaffham and Watton Watton 

Thetford Thetford 

Attleborough Attleborough 

 

  

36



Appendix 3 : ACORN and Norfolk Constabulary Local Delivery Units (LDUs) 

classifications 

 
2

5

 

 

District Local Delivery Unit 
Safer Neighbourhood Team 

area 

South Norfolk 

Bowthorpe and Costessey Bowthorpe and Costessey  

Wymondham, Hethersett and Mulbarton Wymondham 

Wymondham, Hethersett and Mulbarton Hethersett and Mulbarton 

Poringland and Loddon Poringland 

Poringland and Loddon Loddon 

Long Stratton, Diss and Harleston Long Stratton 

Long Stratton, Diss and Harleston Diss 

Long Stratton, Diss and Harleston Harleston 

Great 

Yarmouth 

Rural Flegg Villages, Caister and Coastal Villages Rural Flegg Villages 

Rural Flegg Villages, Caister and Coastal Villages Caister and Coastal Villages 

North Yarmouth Area North Yarmouth Area 

South Yarmouth Area South Yarmouth Area 

Southern Villages Area Cobholm and Southtown 

Area 
Southern Villages Area 

Southern Villages Area Cobholm and Southtown 

Area 

Cobholm and Southtown 

Area 

Bradwell and Magdalen Areas Bradwell Area 

Bradwell and Magdalen Areas Magdalen Area 

Gorleston Gorleston Area 

  

37



Norfolk Citizen  Wave 21  Breckland data 

 
26 

District Local Delivery Unit 
Safer Neighbourhood Team 
area 

North Norfolk 

Wells, Holt and Fakenham Wells 

Wells, Holt and Fakenham Holt 

Wells, Holt and Fakenham Fakenham 

Sheringham and Cromer Sheringham 

Sheringham and Cromer Cromer 

North Walsham and Stalham North Walsham 

North Walsham and Stalham Stalham 

Norwich City 
Council 

Earlham, Marlpit and Larkman Earlham, Marlpit and Larkman 

Mile Cross, Catton and Fiddlewood 
Mile Cross, Catton and 
Fiddlewood 

Heartsease and Thorpe Hamlet Heartsease and Thorpe Hamlet 

West Centre West Centre 

City Centre City Centre 

University and Eaton University and Eaton 

Lakenham and Tuckswood Lakenham and Tuckswood 

Broadland 

Reepham, Aylsham and Acle Reepham 

Reepham, Aylsham and Acle Aylsham 

Reepham, Aylsham and Acle Acle 

Taverham, Drayton, Hellesdon & Horsford Taverham & Drayton 

Taverham, Drayton, Hellesdon & Horsford Hellesdon and Horsford 

Sprowston and Spixworth Thorpe St Andrew Sprowston and Spixworth 

Sprowston and Spixworth Thorpe St Andrew Thorpe St Andrew 

 

38



39



 

 

28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Because people matter, we listen. 

established a strong reputation for delivering high quality 
research and consultancy. 

Our business is about understanding people; because they 
matter. Finding out what they really need; from the type of 
information they use to the type of services they require. In 
short, finding out about the kind of world people want to live in 
tomorrow. 

BMG serves both the social public sector and the commercial 
private sector, providing market and customer insight which is 
vital in the development of plans, the support of campaigns 
and the evaluation of performance. 

Innovation and development is very much at the heart of our 
business, and considerable attention is paid to the utilisation of 
technologies such as portals and information systems to 
ensure that market and customer intelligence is widely shared.  

40


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Abolition of the Standards Regime
	7 Citizen's Panel

